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DESCRI BE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (// known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The central core of Main College Building, as designed by William 
Strickland and built in 1828-29, was simple rectangular, two-story- 
over-elevated-basement brick structure, with a pedimented three-bay-wid< 
projecting central pavilion on the south (main) facade and gable ends 
on the east and west sides. In 1850 Edward B. White added large two- 
story brick and stucco wings to the east and west sides and the present 
grandiose colossal portico, with six giant Roman Ionic pillars and 
treaded basement, to the center of the main facade. White thereby 
changed Strickland's simple and-utilitarian design to the existing 
Bore elaborate Roman Revival mode. The 1852 wings were badly damaged 
In the earthquake of 1886 and were rebuilt, but the degree of deviation 
from the 1852 plans is not known. In 1930 the west wing was extended 
to reach College Street.

The Gate Lodge, designed by White and built in 1852, is a 
rectangular two-story brick and stucco structure in the Roman Revival 
style. Three-bays wide, the center first story is occupied by a wide 
and high round-arch doorway which is flanked fey two lower and narrower 
round-arch doors. Four giant pillars of the Tuscan order rise to 
support the pediment that extends across the entire street facade of 
;he structure.

The College Library, designed by George E. Walker and built in 
L854-56, is a rectangular two-story brick arid stucco structure over 
half basement in the mid-19th century Classical Revival style, with 

1 Italianate details, corner quoins, and round-headed windows, Inside, 
a central reading room rises two stories in height and is surrounded 
by a gallery, under which the bookshelves are arranged in alcoves that 
lead to the windows  Doorways under the gallery are arched. The 
building remains much as it was built, except that tHe half basement 
has been deepened to s.erve as an additional floor.
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TATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The small campus of the College of Charleston contains three 
structures,- the Main Building, the Library, and Gate Lodge, situated 
in an attractive setting of evergreen oaks, that achieve a certain 
degree of unity by means of the prevailing Pompeian red coloring of 
their stuccoed walls. The Main Building, a large Roman Revival 
edifice erected in two stages between 1827 and 1852, with later 
rebuildings and additions, is an organic growth structure. The core 
of the building, now largely hidden from view by later additions, 
was by architect William Strickland, and the existing and dominating 
design is by Edward Brickell White. The Gate Lodge, also designed 
by White and built in 1852, is an example of a Roman Revival brick 
building. The Library, constructed in 1854-56 and designed by 
George Edward Walker, is a two-story brick structure in the mid-19th 
Century Classical Revival style, with Italianate details. The Gate 
Lodge and Library are little-altered.

History

The endowment fund for the College of Charleston was founded 
in 177O; on March 19, 1785 the college was chartered by the General 
Assembly of South Carolina and the first classes met later in the 
same year. In 1837 the'College became a municipal institution; in 
1918 it became coeducational, and on April 28, 1949, through an act 
of the General Assembly, the original charter of 1785 was in effect 
restored and the College of Charleston returned to its original 
private status.

History of the Buildings

The College of Charleston occupied its present campus in 1790 
and from 1790 to 1829 the institution's classroom building was a 
former barracks that had been built during the Revolutionary War. 
In 1827 the architect William Strickland of Philadelphia prepared 
plans for the College's first new building, a rectangular two-story 
brick structure that now forms the center section of edifice known 
as the Main Building. Construction on this new structure begain 
on January 12, 1828 and was virtually completed by March, 1829. 
Cost of construction was about $21,OOO. In 184O the brick walls of 
the Main Building received a coating of roughcast or Roman cement,
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CORNER LATITUDE LONGITUDE

Degrees Minutes Seconds Degrees Minutes Seconds
NW 32 o 47 02 79o 56 - 17 - 
NE 32 o 47 03- 79o 56 • 15 • 
SE 32 o 47 00 79° 56 • 12 - 
sw 32 o 46 59 79° 56 • 15 •
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tional Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law 
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thus establishing a precedent that was followed in all later construction 
Just when the Pompeian red coloring was first applied to the coating 
is not known.

In 1850-52 the Main Building was greatly enlarged and its originally 
simple exterior completely remodeled in the Roman Revival style by the 
architect Edward Brickell White of Charleston. The large wings and 
existing giant central portico were added by White. The cost of these 
additions amounted to more than $30,000. The 1852 wings were severely 
damaged by the earthquake of 1886. These were rebuilt but the degree 
of deviation from the. originals is not known. The east winq was restored 
according to a design prepared by E. R. Rutledge, as modified by Dr.
abriel E. Manigault. In 1930, ; the west wing was extended to College 
Street by Simons and Lapham.

In 1852 White designed the two-story brick and stucco Gate Lodge 
in the Roman Revival Style and also the existing wrought-iron fence 
that enclosed the campus. The iron work was executed by Werner.

Plans for the Library Building, a two-story brick and stucco 
structure in the mid-19th century Classical Revival Style, with 
Italianate details, were prepared by George Edward Walker of Charleston 
in 1854. The contract was given to William F. Patterson in January, 1855 
and the building was in use in July, 1856.
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